
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Friday 25 January 2013  
10.00 am 

Council Chamber - Hammersmith Town Hall 
King Street, London, W6 9JU 

 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Administration: Opposition 
Councillor Matt Thorley (Chairman) 
Councillor Tom Crofts 
 

Councillor Michael Cartwright 
 

 

Premises Ward Time 
Nomad Café, 2b Thorpebank Road, 
London,  W12 0PQ 

Wormholt and 
White City 

10am 

Punto, 112 Askew Road, London, 
W12 9BL 

Askew At the conclusion of the 
previous hearing 
 

Larrik Inn, 425 New King's Road, 
London, SW6 4RN 

Palace Riverside At the conclusion of the 
previous hearing 
 

 

 CONTACT OFFICER: Owen Rees 
Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 �: 020 8753 2088 
 E-mail: owen.rees@lbhf.gov.uk 
 Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy  Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment is provided, along with disabled access to the building. The Sub-Committee is held under the regulations of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
Case Officer: Adrian Overton (Items 4 and 5) and Lisa White (Item 6) 

Date Issued: 
 

17 January 2013 
 

 
 



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Agenda 

 25 January 2013 
 
 Item  Pages 
1. MINUTES  1 - 21 
 To approve as an accurate record, and the Chairman to sign, the 

minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 28 and 30 November 
2012 and 11 and 13 December 2012. 
  

 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
  

If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any 
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the 
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature 
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or 
as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter.  The Councillor must 
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions 
and Standards Committee.   
  

 

4. NOMAD CAFÉ, 2B THORPEBANK ROAD, LONDON,  W12 0PQ (APPLICATION NUMBER: 2012/01701/LAPR)  22 - 56 

 Application for a new Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003.   
 



5. PUNTO, 112 ASKEW ROAD, LONDON, W12 9BL (APPLICATION NUMBER: 2012/01683/LAPR)  57 - 92 

 Application for a new Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003.    

6. LARRIK INN, 425 NEW KING'S ROAD, LONDON, SW6 4RN (APPLICATION NUMBER:2012/02036/LAPRR )  93 - 116 

 Application for a new Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003.    
 



AXO/E00012/607    

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

. London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Licensing Sub-
Committee 

Minutes 
 

Wednesday 28 November 2012 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Matt Thorley (Chairman), Michael Cartwright and 
Steve Hamilton 
 
Responsible Authorities 
Metropolitan Police (Applicant): Police Sergeant Stuart Ratcliffe 
Planning Enforcement: Julian Renselar 
 
Officers:  Adesuwa Omoregie, Legal Advisor, Adrian Overton, Licensing Officer, and 
Owen Rees, Committee Coordinator 
 
Licensee: Riza Yeldan (Owner) and Mahir Kilic (Legal Representative)  
 

 
1. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 12 October and 31 October 2012 be confirmed 
and signed as an accurate record of the proceedings. 
 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were none 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

4. EROMA, 182 UXBRIDGE ROAD, LONDON, W12 7JP (APPLICATION NUMBER: 
2012/01678/LAPRR)  
 
The Sub-Committee received and considered an application for review of the 
premises licence at Eroma, 182 Uxbridge Road, London, W12 7JP. 
 
Main Points of Evidence 
 

Page 2



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Licensing Officer  
 
Adrian Overton, Licensing Officer, introduced the application, which had been 
submitted on the 4th October 2012. He said that notice of the review was hand-
delivered to the premises by the Police as applicant. Notice of the hearing date   
was sent to the premises licence holder ten working days before the hearing and 
delivered by hand to the premises during the previous week. He said that the 
residents who had made objections as part of the application had been unable to 
attend.  
 
He said that the premises were located in the Shepherds Bush Cumulative Impact 
Zone. 
 
Responsible Authorities 
 
Planning Enforcement 
 
Julian Renselar attended on behalf of Cathy Thornton. He said that the premises 
currently held planning permission for A1 use; operating as a sandwich bar. A 
planning application had been submitted to change the use from A1 to A3. This 
application was refused by the planning authority on policy grounds. The 
application was now the subject of an a appeal.. Mr. Renselar had no definitive 
evidence that the premises were currently operating as a restaurant and serving 
hot food. He said that should that appeal be upheld, the Council’s planning policies 
for town centre restaurants meant that the hours of use beyond 12am would not be 
allowed.  
 
He said that the hours of operation for the premises fell within what was 
considered the “quiet period” between 12am and 5am, when there was an 
expectation of no disturbance for residents. He would expect, in the event of the 
appeal being upheld, for the inspector to not grant permission for the premises to 
operate after 12am.  
 
Metropolitan Police (applicant) 
 
Police Sergeant Stuart Ratcliffe, Licensing Sergeant for the borough, outlined the 
reasons why the review had been brought by the Police. He said that the review 
had been brought on the grounds of the prevention of crime and disorder and the 
prevention of public nuisance. He said that the level of public nuisance could be 
gauged by the statements made by the public in support of the application, with 
one describing the area as “a community under siege”. He said that a balance 
needed to be found between the needs of the night time economy and the rights of 
local residents. He noted that the premises were part of the Cumulative Impact 
Zone, and that a nearby premises had recently applied for, and been refused, an 
extension in hours; that premises had chosen not to appeal. 
 
He said that the location of the premises was important to understanding the 
issues. He said that it was on the corner of Hopgood Street, an entirely residential 
street with a large number of high buildings with basements separating the 
premises from Shepherds Bush Green. The road begins at the junction with 
Uxbridge Road and due to the nature of the buildings, the noise bounces off the 

Page 3



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

high walls. He said that the residents of that street experience widespread 
disruption, as evidenced in their statements, both from the premises and from the 
FM Bar. His view was that if the original application for late night refreshment came 
before the committee today that the committee should consider refusing the 
application.  
 
He then drew the Sub-Committee’s attention to the crime summary submitted with 
the application. He started by confirming that in his view it is not appropriate to 
provide the exact particulars of each crime to view the pattern of incidents at the 
premises. Nonetheless he stated that he felt the crime summary submitted gave a 
sufficiently detailed picture to the Sub-Committee. He drew the Sub-Committee’s 
attention to particular incidents on the summary, noting their severity:  
 
• On the 18th July 2012, at 00.35 hours, a customer was stabbed while on the 

premises, suffering a punctured lung. Police are currently looking for the 
suspect and believe that he may have fled the country.  

• On the 20th February 2012 between 23.30 and 00.01 hours, a fight broke 
out on the premises, when a large group set upon two men. During the fight, 
one man was hit with a glass bottle, while one suspect returned to the 
premised after the fight went outside and stole knives from the kitchen to 
use in the fight. Another man was stabbed. As those involved were unwilling 
to press charges, the incident had been recorded as an affray. During their 
investigation of the incident on the 20th February, police approached the 
premises for access to their CCTV system. They contacted or visited the 
premises seeking access to the system on the 21st, 22nd , 23rd , 27th, 29th of 
February and the 1st and 5th of March before seizing the CCTV equipment 
on the 7th March. Despite work by a specialist unit, not all footage required 
was recoverable.  

• On the 25th February 2012, a female was assaulted on the premises, having 
been subject to sexual harassment. During the course of the altercation, she 
had her handbag stolen, was punched in the face and her arm was badly 
hurt. 

 
Councillor Hamilton asked for confirmation that the incident on the 25th February 
occurred while the investigation into the events of the 20th was ongoing. PS 
Ratcliffe confirmed that it did. 
 
PS Ratcliffe noted the time at which these crimes had occurred, and said that this 
was the time of day at which such crimes should not be occurring. He then asked 
to read from the statements submitted by residents in support of the application. 
He said that statements had been made by residents from across the community, 
from highly paid bankers to those resident in social housing. He said that names 
had been removed from the statements to protect their privacy, but none had any 
commercial interests in the area.  
 
He highlighted key passages, noting the lack of sleep residents were forced to 
endure and that this was directly linked to operations at Eroma and the behaviour 
of its customers. The Chairman said that the Sub-Committee had read the 
application and did not need these elements repeated. 
 

Page 4



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

PS Ratcliffe said that the Police had considered conditions, but did not consider 
that conditions alone would be appropriate in addressing the problems with respect 
to crime and disorder and the prevention of public nuisance. He also noted that the 
licence holder had offered no conditions.  
The crimes occurred in the early hours of the morning. He said that it was therefore 
considered necessary, in order to promote the licensing objectives, to reduce the 
hours of operation at the premises. 
 
Applicant 
 
Mahir Kilic, representative for the applicant, began by clarifying that there were no 
CCTV conditions on the existing licence. Mr Overton confirmed that this was the 
case.  
 
He also stated that the planning and licensing regimes were separate, and that the 
decision made by the planning authority was subject to an appeal. It was 
necessary for the Sub-Committee to bear this in mind when considering the 
representation made by Mr Renselar on behalf of Planning Enforcement. The 
Chairman confirmed that the Sub-Committee were aware of the separation 
between the two regimes, and would observe this when making their decision.  
 
Mr Kilic then gave the premises’ response to the review. He said that the owner, 
Riza Yeldan, had bought a share in the premises in 2005, and made the 
successful application for the current hours in 2007. He said that Mr Yeldan had 
received the notice of the review date only in the previous week, as he had 
changed address and not informed the Council.   
 
Mr Kilic said that he always recommended that his clients be represented by a 
barrister when their licence was under review, but, due to the shortened notice, he 
had been unable to make an instruction. He had asked for a postponement but the 
Police had refused this.  
 
Mr Kilic said that he had also made a request for more information on the incidents 
included in the crime summary as he wanted to be able to demonstrate the link 
between the incidents and the facts. He said that the information presented was 
inadequate to gauge what, if anything, the involvement of the staff was, and what, 
if anything, the premises could have done to prevent such incidents occurring.  
He said that section 11.24 of the Section 182 Guidance supported him on this 
point, noting that the Sub-Committee was not a court of law and should not 
determine whether criminal conduct had occurred, but whether changes to a 
licence were necessary to promote the licensing objectives.  
 
He repeated that the premises should not be held responsible, on the basis of the 
evidence provided, for the incidents that had occurred on the premises. He said 
that while he did not underestimate the seriousness of the crimes, the Sub-
Committee did not have enough information to hold the premises responsible and 
that individuals were responsible in their own right and therefore the premises 
should not be blamed. He said that the example of the suspect who had fled the 
country was a good example of this.  
 

Page 5



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

He continued that the proximity of the FM Bar, a late night premises with an 
alcohol licence, which was also the subject of an application for review, may have 
led to the premises being blamed for incidents that originated from there. He said 
that PS Ratcliffe had alluded to noise in his verbal submission, but that was not the 
cause of the review and could be given only so much weight, given the time that 
had elapsed since the statements.  
 
The Chairman asked how the premises would address the concerns set out in the 
application.  
 
Mr Kilic said that the premises would accept any conditions that the Sub-
Committee thought necessary, and would gladly incorporate CCTV conditions on 
their licence. He said that the premises were sorry that they had not been able to 
operate their system in a timely fashion, but that this had not been a breach of 
condition. He added that Mr Yeldan was now sole owner of the premises, and had 
appointed a new manager who could operate the existing system to a high 
standard.  
 
Councillor Cartwright asked whether the premises should not have provided 
potential conditions themselves. Mr Kilic said that this was a function of the short 
notice. 
 
The Chairman asked, in light of the incidents and the problems that the premises 
said stemmed from the FM Bar, whether the premises had taken any proactive 
measures. Mr Kilic stressed that each application should be treated on its own 
merits, and that the earlier refusal of an application by Subway for extended hours 
should not affect the Sub-Committee’s decision. He said that the Council had 
made the right decision in agreeing the licence in 2007, and though the premises 
were in the CIZ, they did not sell alcohol. He said that, with regards to other 
conditions, door staff would not be appropriate, nor had they been effective at the 
FM Bar, where the crowd was managed poorly. He said that in line with 11.16 to 
11.23 of the guidance, the premises could have changed its Designated Premises 
Supervisor, but as the manager had been changed and as there was no DPS for 
late night refreshment, this was not suitable. He said that the premises would be 
happy to ban problem individuals and keep a book recording that they had done 
so. He said that, whatever the Sub-Committee’s decision, cold food would remain 
on sale throughout the night, and that, if the incidents were as serious as the 
Police argued, than a review could or should have been brought earlier. He said 
that he could not think of any conditions other than CCTV and the logbook of 
banned individuals that would be suitable.  
 
Councillor Cartwright asked how much involvement that Mr Yeldan has with the 
premises. Mr Kilic said that Mr Yelden had only recently taken full control of the 
premises, and met with PS Ratcliffe after the review had been submitted. He had 
changed the manager and the premises had been refurbished. In response to a 
question from PS Ratcliffe, Mr Yeldan confirmed that he could speak English to a 
high standard. 
 
Summing Up 
 
Mr Overton and Mr Renselar said that they had no further comments. 

Page 6



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
PS Ratcliffe said that he was disappointed in the submission made by the 
premises. He said that the status of CCTV as a condition was irrelevant to the 
premises’ earlier failure to supply the police with the evidence they need. He said 
that the premises’ attitude appeared to be that problems at the premises could be 
left to the police to solve. He said that the crime summary, together with the 
evidence he had given, was more than sufficient to allow the Sub-Committee to 
form  a view on the frequency with which serious incidents occurred at times when 
the premises was carrying out licensable activity.  
 
He clarified that the issues with regards to noise related to the public nuisance 
objective, which the application also covered. He said that he had expected the 
premises to provide a list of conditions; he said that the failure to do so reflected 
that the problems could not be solved by conditions alone. He said that the fact 
that the original application to extend the hours had been approved reflected the 
then-novelty of the legislation and poor decision making by the Police at that time 
in deciding not to submit an objection. He said that upholding the current review 
application was the only way of addressing the problems being experienced. 
 
Mr Kilic said that any decision by the Sub-Committee should be to stop problems in 
the area, which in his view were caused by the consumption of alcohol.  He said 
that the customers at the premises were more likely to be mini-cab drivers and 
similar and were not the type to cause problems. He said that the premises would 
continue to serve cold food through the night, and that removing the licensable 
activity would therefore have little effect.  
 
He said that with the offered conditions, including an incident logbook, in place, Mr 
Yeldan who was a trustworthy operator in sole charge, and the poor evidence of 
any connection between the premises and the crimes described, a reduction in 
hours could not be considered necessary. He added that the hours were important 
to the viability of the business, and the premises should not be blamed for the 
incidents that had occurred.  
 
He concluded by reminding the Sub-Committee that Mr Yeldan had not committed 
an offence by failing to update his details as premises licensee.  
 
The Sub-Committee retired to consider its decision at 8.05pm, returning at 8.18pm.  
 
RESOLVED THAT 
 
The Sub-Committee unanimously agreed that the hours for the sale of late night 
refreshment would be from 11pm until 12am every day of the week, the opening 
hours would be from 6am until 12am every day of the week and that 3 conditions 
would be imposed on the licence 2 in relation to CCTV and 1 in relation to a 
logbook. 
 
Full reasons for decision are contained in the decision letter that accompanies 
these minutes.   
 

 
Meeting started: 7.00pm 

Page 7



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Meeting ended: 8.19pm 
 
 

Chairman   
 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Owen Rees 
Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 �: 020 8753 2088 
 E-mail: owen.rees@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 8



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

. London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Licensing Sub-
Committee 

Minutes 
 

Friday 30 November 2012 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Matt Thorley (Chairman) and Lucy Ivimy 
 
Applicant: J Palmer, solicitor for the applicant and L. Dodd, Regional Licensing Manager 
for Ladbrokes   
 
Officers:  Alex Russell, Legal Adviser, Adrian Overton, Licensing Officer, and Owen 
Rees, Committee Clerk 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Cartwright.  
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
The Chairman declared an other interest on account of the online betting account 
he held with Ladbrokes.  
 

3. LADBROKES , 173 UXBRIDGE ROAD, LONDON, W12 9RA  
 
The Sub-Committee received and considered an application under the Gambling 
Act 2005, in relation to Ladbrokes, 173 Uxbridge Road, London, W12 9RA. 
 
Main Points Of Evidence 
 
Licensing Officer 
Adrian Overton, Licensing Officer, introduced the application. He said that the 
Police had made a representation, in response to which the applicant had agreed a 
number of conditions. These conditions, together with those standard under the 
Council’s Gambling Policy, had been sent to the other objector, Mr Johann Perry, 
but Mr Perry had not chosen to withdraw the application.  
 
Applicant 
Ms J Palmer, solicitor for Ladbrokes, said that the statement and other materials 
submitted by Mr L Dodd, the regional Licensing Manager, covered the applicant’s 
case in some depth, and she proposed to highlight key points to the Sub-
Committee.  

Page 9



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
Ms Palmer said that the premises were located in a secondary shopping area 
away from the main town centre around Shepherds Bush Market. She said that the 
map submitted to the Sub-Committee that the only shop in the immediate vicinity 
was a branch of another operator (William Hill) and Ladbrokes would therefore 
offer choice to customers. She said that Ladbrokes was the second largest 
operator in the country and with 2000 outlets, and were a responsible operator. 
 
She then set out the premises’ layout to the Sub-Committee. She emphasised the 
CCTV coverage, which was linked to a specialist CCTV security team at 
Ladbrokes’ head office. She stressed that staff had their own staff room and that 
the safe was on a timer and set into the floor.  
 
She said that staff were given extensive training on spotting customers who were 
displaying problematic betting behaviour. She said that all shops contained posters 
and literature advertising GamCare. She added that all shops compiled an incident 
logbook; Mr Dodd had reviewed the log belonging to the borough’s other 
Ladbrokes branch and made a visit to the William Hill prior to attending the Sub- 
Committee: in neither case had he seen any evidence of problems with drug 
dealing or with under-18’s trying to use the shops. 
 
Councillor Ivimy asked about the number of fixed odds betting terminals and 
whether delays for those waiting to place a bet might lead them to use a fixed odd 
terminal instead. Mr Dodd said that such a thing was unlikely, as while there were 
were usually 10 to 15 customers in a shop, they place bets relatively infrequently.  
 
Councillor Ivimy asked how Ladbrokes prevented money laundering through cash 
bets. Ms Palmer said that, unless staff could detect a pattern, it would be difficult to 
tell whether small cash bets were being made for that reason. Mr Dodd said that 
large cash bets would automatically trigger staff suspicion and additional 
monitoring.  
 
Councillor Ivimy asked whether there was an ATM in the shop. Mr Dodd confirmed 
that there was not.  
 
The Chairman asked how often shop audits were conducted. Mr Dodd said that 
they were annual, but were also conducted by exception if problems arose.  
 
The Chairman asked Mr Dodd whether he had any experience of anti-social 
behaviour in relation to the gambling industry in the borough. Mr Dodd said that he 
had not, and that there was not usually a relationship between betting shops and 
anti-social behaviour. He also clarified that the Citizens Card was a form of ID 
issued by the Government to those without a passport or driver’s licence.  
 
Summing Up 
Ms Palmer said that the Gambling Act applied a different methodology to the 
Licensing Act, with its two-tier system for approving operators. She said that the 
Gambling Commission had, when granting a licence to Ladbrokes, assessed 
Ladbrokes’ suitability to hold a licence against a number of criteria, including it's 
attitudes to responsible gaming and its procedures with regards to the protection of 

Page 10



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

children from harm. She said that the Sub-Committee could only refuse a licence 
where it felt that harm would definitely be caused. 
 
She argued that the evidence put before the Sub-Committee by the objectors did 
not meet this test, and did not believe that simply passing by a bookmaker 
amounted to harm. She said that Section 153 of the Guidance supported this view. 
She noted the extensive conditions agreed with the Police, and asked that, subject 
to those conditions being imposed, the application be granted.  
 
The Sub-Committee retired at 10.29am, returning at 10.34am.  
 
RESOLVED THAT 
 
The Sub-Committee decided to grant the application, subject to the conditions 
agreed with the Police and the default conditions being added to the licence. 
 
Full reasons for decision are contained in the decision letter that accompanies 
these minutes.  
 

 
Meeting started: 10.00 am 
Meeting ended: 10.35 am 

 
 

Chairman   
 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Owen Rees 
Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 �: 020 8753 2088 
 E-mail: owen.rees@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 11



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

. London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Licensing Sub-
Committee 

Minutes 
 

Tuesday 11 December 2012 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Matt Thorley (Chairman), Michael Cartwright and 
Peter Graham 
 
Premises: Freddie and Mylene Gonzales, FM Bar, Gareth Hughes, Jonathan Patel, 
Jeffrey Green Russell, representing FM Bar, Urim Ademaj and Michael Verling, 
Investigation and Research Bureau, and Richard Bird, Tangerine Pink Ltd (Premises 
Licence holder) 
 
Applicant: Police Sergeant Stuart Ratcliffe, Licensing Sergeant for the Borough 
 
Environmental Protection: Derek Pitter, Environmental Protection Office 
 
Officers:  Alex Russell, Legal Adviser, Adrian Overton, Licensing Officer and Owen 
Rees, Committee Coordinator 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
There were none.  
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. FM BAR, 184 UXBRIDGE ROAD, LONDON, W12 7JP (APPLICATION 
NUMBER:2012/01679/LAPRR)  
 
The Sub-Committee received and considered an application for review of the 
premises licence at FM Bar, 184 Uxbrdige Road, London, W12 7JP. 
 
The Sub-Committee began at 7pm and adjourned until 7.15pm, before adjourning 
again to 7.45pm, to allow negotiations between the parties. 
 
Main Points Of Evidence 
 
Police Sergeant Stuart Ratcliffe, Licensing Sergeant for the Borough and applicant, 
said that, thanks to the indulgence of the Sub-Committee, all parties had agreed a 

Page 12



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

mutually acceptable position. This would see a number of conditions imposed, and 
a reduction of half an hour to the terminal hour for all activities. He said that this 
would put in place an appropriate licence for the premises. 
 
Gareth Hughes, for the premises, listed the conditions agreed by the applicant and 
the premises. He submitted a list of 13 conditions agreed with the applicant, 
subject to changes to 5 and 13 (the deletion of the words “and Sunday” and the 
addition of the words “save for members”, respectively). With regards to the club 
condition on the existing licence, he said that the condition had been in place for 
some time, and was not suitable for purpose; the expanded condition submitted 
offered assurance of greater control and enforceability if there were subsequent 
problems. He said that the premises accepted that the membership scheme had 
not been functioning properly, but was committed to ensuring it was the basis of 
the club’s operation: all members would be asked to rejoin to ensure compliance. 
He noted that the condition would, with its 24 hour waiting period for membership, 
mean that there was no public entry. 
 
Other conditions agreed were that 5 door supervisors would be on site between 
21:00 and closure on Friday and Saturday, with 1 between 21:00 and 22:00 and 2 
between 22:00 and closure on other nights, and recommendations 21, 22, 24, 39 
and 41 from the licensing report. Recommendation 19 had also been agreed 
subject to the queuing direction being from Hopgood Street. The premises was 
also willing to accept conditions with regards to regular resident meetings and 
participation in the Pubwatch scheme. He said that recommendations 11 and 20 
on the licensing report submitted had been agreed to replacing existing condition 
8.  
 
Councillor Graham asked whether it was acceptable to all parties to remove the 
first clause of recommendation 11 for the purposes of clarity. All parties confirmed 
that it was. He also asked whether the premises were willing to include a 
requirement to show photographic ID before receiving membership. The premises 
said that they were. 
 
PS Ratcliffe said that a no entry/re-entry after 12.30am, except for smokers, 
condition had also been agreed. Mr Hughes confirmed that this was true. 
 
The Sub-Committee retired at 8.03pm, returning at 8.10pm.  
 
RESOLVED THAT 
 
The Sub-Committee agreed the review, and that it was necessary and 
proportionate to impose all conditions proposed by the parties.  
 
Full reasons for decision are contained in the decision letter which accompanies 
these minutes.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 13



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 8.10 pm 

 
 

Chairman   
 
 
 
 

Contact officer:  
Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 �: 020 8753 2088 
 E-mail: owen.rees@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 14



AXO/E00012/611    

. London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Licensing Sub-
Committee 

Minutes 
 

Thursday 13 December 2012 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Matt Thorley (Chairman), Charlie Dewhirst and Daryl 
Brown 
 
Applicant: Police Sergeant Ratcliffe, Licensing Sergeant for the Borough 
 
Officers: Adesuwa Omoregie, Legal Adviser,  Adrian Overton, Licensing Officer, Graham 
Souster, Public Protection Officer, Dom Stagg, Environmental Health Officer and Sue 
Perrin, Committee Co-ordinator  
 
(3) Applicant: Shahid Hussain, Bagel Bite 
 
Metropolitan Police: Police Sergeant Ratcliffe, Licensing Sergeant for the Borough 
 
(4) Licensee: Mr Farooq Alikhel (Zarah, 80 Uxbridge Road, London W12 8LR) 
 
Metropolitan Police: Police Sergeant Ratcliffe, Licensing Sergeant for the Borough 
 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest 
 
 
 

3. BAGEL BITE, 22 SHEPHERD'S BUSH GREEN, LONDON W12 8PH 
(APPLICATION NUMBER:2012/01584/LAPR )  
 
The sub-committee received and considered an application for a new 
premises licence in respect of the premises known as Bagel Bite, 22 
Shepherd’s Bush Green, London W12 8PH. 
 

Page 15



AXO/E00012/611    

Main Points of Evidence 
 
Licensing Officer 
 
Adrian Overton stated that the premises had incorrectly been referred to as 
’20 Shepherd’s Bush Green’ in the agenda. The correct address was ’22 
Shepherd’s Bush Green’. 
 
Mr Overton introduced the application and stated that the conditions 
requested by the Council’s Environmental Protection team had been agreed 
and the team’s representation had subsequently been withdrawn. In addition, 
the conditions requested by the Metropolitan Police had been agreed. 
However, the hours requested by the Police had not been agreed.  
 
The premises are situated within the Shepherd’s Bush ‘Cumulative Impact 
Area’. 
 
In respect of 20 Shepherd’s Bush Road, two warning letters were issued in 
July 2011 and November 2011. The letter in July 2011 related to the lack of a 
notice on display showing the name of the person in charge which was a 
breach of its conditions. The letter in November 2011 related to a breach of 
the same condition as no notice was on display showing who was in charge 
and staff were not wearing name badges. 
 
Metropolitan Police 
 
Sergeant Ratcliffe stated that the Police conditions had been agreed at 
approximately 7pm that evening. The Police had previously made attempts to 
negotiate with the Applicant however there had been no response from the 
Applicant to e-mails and telephone calls. 
 
Sergeant Ratcliffe stated that the late night economy in Shepherd’s Bush 
Green had been a crime hotspot for a significant period of time and was one 
of the reasons for the introduction of the Cumulative Impact Area.  
 
Since the granting of the premises licence at 20 Shepherd’s Bush Road, the 
Council has introduced the CIP policy. This means that an application for a 
premises licence which is likely to add to the existing cumulative impact would 
normally be refused, where a relevant representation has been made. This 
would be the case unless the applicant can demonstrate that there would be  
no negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives as a 
result of the grant of the licence. The premises in this application are small 
and any crime and disorder or public disorder is likely to occur around or 
outside the premises.  
 
Sergeant Ratcliffe stated that the initial hours proposed by the Police were too 
generous and out of line with every other premises licence granted within the 
previous two years. The hours proposed by the Police are now:  
 

• Sunday to Thursday  23:00 until midnight 

Page 16



AXO/E00012/611    

• Friday and Saturday 23:00 until 01:00 
 
Applicant 
 
Shahid Hussain, Company Director, responded to the comments made by 
Sergeant Ratcliffe regarding his lack of response to e-mails and telephone 
calls. He explained that he had made attempts to contact Sergeant Ratcliffe 
but  had been unable to reach him. In respect of the Police e-mail regarding 
hours, he highlighted that the new premises application was requesting less 
hours for late night refreshment than those permitted by the premises license 
at unit 20.. 
 
Mr Hussain responded to a question asking why he had moved from unit 20 to 
unit 22. He explained that the landlord for 20 Shepherd’s Bush Green required 
the unit to link with unit 21 and therefore he was required to move to unit 22. 
Planning Permission has recently been granted for unit 22 for the proposed 
use. 
 
 Unit 22 is 542 square feet and unit 20 is 540 square feet. 
 
Mr Hussain confirmed that the license for 20 Shepherd’s Bus Green had been 
surrendered. Late night refreshment consisted of bagels and toasted 
sandwiches.. Cold food was available outside of the licensed hours. 
 
Councillor Thorley asked about the trade to the premises after midnight and 
the behaviour of customers.. Mr Hussain stated that whilst there was 
occasionally unacceptable behaviour, customers were generally well behaved 
and drove to the shop. Staff did not have any safety concerns. 
 
Councillor Dewhirst queried the numbers of customers at 2am. Mr Hussain 
responded that there would probably be between two to four on a weekday 
and five to six on a weekend. Food tended to be purchased on the premises 
and then eaten away from the premises. 
 
Councillor Dewhirst asked about the premises near to Bagel Bite with late 
opening hours.. Mr Hussain responded that there was only a bed and 
breakfast on the same side of the road and a petrol station further along. 
 
Councillor Thorley asked how the proposed condition 5 (which limits the    
maximum number of customers within the premises to 5) would be enforced. 
Mr Hussain responded that staff would ask any additional customers to wait 
outside. There would be a maximum number of two people waiting outside, as 
others tended to walk away if they saw that there were too many people in the 
premises. Some seating was provided in the shop during the day, but none 
after 11pm. Customers would park in a nearby side street. 
 
Summing Up 
 

Page 17



AXO/E00012/611    

Mr Overton stated that there were two nearby premises: the Ginglik Club, 
opposite but underground, which opened until 2am on Fridays and Saturdays; 
and Belushi’s Bar with small capacity, and which opened until 1am. 
 
Sergeant Ratcliffe stated that the Police objected to the premises licence 
application. He did not consider that Mr Hussain had demonstrated any 
extenuating circumstances justifying why the requested hours should be 
granted. Trade was being attracted from outside the borough and cars parked 
in Rockley Road, a largely residential area. He referred the sub-committee to 
the recent review hearing of ‘Eroma’, which was in the same environment and 
providing the same service.  
 
Mr Hussain stated that whilst ‘Eroma’ application might be similar in 
environment and service, Bagel Bite was different in that it was well managed. 
In conclusion, he requested the hours as stated in the application. 
 
The sub-committee retired to consider its decision at 7.35pm, returning at 
7.50pm. 
 
RESOLVED THAT:  
 
The sub-committee unanimously agreed to grant in part the application,. The 
sale of late night refreshment at the premises is permitted at the following 
times: 
 

• Sunday to Thursday  23:00 until 01:00 
• Friday and Saturday 23:00 until 02:00 

 
All conditions requested by the Police and Environmental Protection and 
those suggested by the applicant would be imposed. 
 
Full reasons for the decision are contained in the decision letter, which 
accompanies these minutes.  

Page 18



AXO/E00012/610    

 
 
 

4. ZARAH, 80 UXBRIDGE ROAD, LONDON W12 8LR (APPLICATION 
NUMBER:2012/01592/LAPRR)  
 
The sub-committee considered an application for the review                                                           
of a Premises License in respect of the premises known as Zarah, 80 
Uxbridge Road, London W12 8LR.  
 
Main Points of Evidence 
 
Licensing Officer 
 
Mr Overton introduced the application, which had been brought by the 
Metropolitan Police. The review sought to add a number of conditions to the 
premises licence.  
 
The Council’s Environmental Protection service had made a representation in 
support of this application. They had advised that numerous noise nuisance 
complaints had been received in relation to the yard to the rear of the 
premises, which had been used to smoke Shisha, and had requested that four 
additional conditions were added to the reviewed license.  
 
The Council’s Health and Safety Department had also made a representation 
to the review. 
 
The premises are situated within the Shepherd’s Bush ‘Cumulative Impact 
Area’. 
 
Metropolitan Police 
 
Sergeant Ratcliffe stated that the Police had requested 12 additional 
conditions to be added to the premises licence, relating to the supply or 
smoking of Shisha or similar tobacco products, CCTV as shown in the agenda 
pack; and the sale of alcohol. 
 
Sergeant Ratcliffe stated that these conditions had been offered to the license 
holder and accepted. 
 
Environmental Protection 
 
Environment Protection had requested that four additional conditions were 
added to the reviewed license, to avoid noise from people congregating in the 
rear yard. The four conditions had been accepted by the license holder. 
 
License Holder 
 
Mr Farooq Alikhel stated that he had nothing to add.  
 

Page 19



AXO/E00012/610    

Mr Alikhel responded to queries that the chairs and table had been removed 
from the rear yard area, together with the Shisha equipment.  He confirmed 
that the area was now used for storage only. 
 
Summing Up 
 
There were no further comments. 
 
The sub-committee retired to consider its decision at 8.00pm, returning at 
8.05pm. 
 
RESOLVED THAT:  
 
The sub-committee unanimously agreed to grant the review application 
brought by the Police. All conditions requested by the Police and the  
Environmental Protection team and accepted by the License Holder would be 
imposed upon the licence.  
 
Full reasons for the decision are contained in the decision letter, which 
accompanies these minutes.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 8.05 pm 

 
 

Chairman   
 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Sue Perrin 
Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 �: 020 8753 2094 
 E-mail: sue.perrin@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 20



AXO/E00012/610    

 
 

Page 21



Agenda Item 4

Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Agenda Item 5

Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Contents

         
                     Page

1.   The Application       94 

1.2  Review Application Requested     94 

1.3  Existing Licence        94-95 

2.  Background        95 

3.  Consultation        95-96 

3.4  Relevant Representations      96 

4.  Policy Considerations      96-97 

APPENDICES

  Application for Review      98-104 

  Copy of Existing Licence      105-110 

  Environmental Protection – Representation   111-114 
   
  Plan of the Premises      115 

  Location of La Reserve EGIS map    116 

Agenda Item 6

Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	Minutes 30 November 2012- final
	Minutes 11 December 2012 - final
	Minutes 13 December 2012 - final

	4 Nomad Café, 2B Thorpebank Road, London,  W12 0PQ (Application Number: 2012/01701/LAPR)
	5 Punto, 112 Askew Road, London, W12 9BL (Application Number: 2012/01683/LAPR)
	6 Larrik Inn, 425 New King's Road, London, SW6 4RN (Application Number:2012/02036/LAPRR )

